
 

YOUR community. YOUR voice. 
 
Your Ward Councillors are: 
 
Councillor Harshad Bhavsar 
Councillor Annette Byrne 
Councillor Colin Marriott 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
The Tudor Centre, 

Bewcastle Grove, Leicester 
LE4 2JU 

 
On Tuesday, 20 November 2012 

Starting at 6:00 pm 
 

The following items will be considered: 
 

  

• Youth Service Provision 

• Police Update 

• Community Update 

• Ward Action Plan 

• Ward Community Budget 
  



 

Making Meetings Accessible to All 
  
WHEELCHAIR   
Meetings are held in a variety of community venues. We will only hold 
meetings in venues where there is suitable access for wheelchairs. If you 
have any concerns about accessing a venue by wheelchair, please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer on the details provided. 
  
BRAILLE / AUDIO TAPE – CD / TRANSLATION 
If you require this agenda or a particular part of it to be translated or 
provided on audio tape, the Democratic Services Officer can organise this 
for you (production times will depend on equipment facility availability). In 
certain cases, subject to the agreement of the local Councillors, 
translation facilities can be provided at the meeting.  
  
INDUCTION LOOPS – HEARING AT MEETINGS 
We provide a loop system at every meeting for people with hearing aids. If 
you have a hearing aid, please speak to the Democratic Services Officer 
at the meeting for further assistance if you think you won’t be able to hear 
what’s being discussed. There is also a facility which can help people 
hear better if you don’t have a hearing aid but are hard of hearing, again 
please speak to the Democratic Services Officer about this. 
  



 

 

The first part of the agenda covers formal items, which the 
Councillors need to deal with to ensure that regulations on 
holding meetings are kept to. 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 

 

 Councillors will elect a Chair for the meeting.  
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 The first main item on the agenda is Declarations of Interest where Councillors 
have to say if there is anything on the agenda they have a personal interest in. 
For example if a meeting was due to discuss a budget application put forward 
by a community group and one of the Councillors was a member of that group, 
they would not be able to take part in the decision on that budget application. 
 
Councillors are asked to declare any interest they may have in the business on 
the agenda, and/or indicate that Section 106 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 applies to them. 
 

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Appendix A 

 The Minutes of the previous Abbey Community Meeting held on 21 August 
2012 are attached and Members are asked to confirm them as a correct 
record.  
 

This next part of the agenda covers items where input from 
you on issues that affect your community is welcomed. 
 
5. YOUTH SERVICE PROVISION  

 
To receive an update concerning Youth Service provision within the Ward 
arising from the concerns expressed by young people at the previous meeting. 

 

 

 

6. POLICE UPDATE  
 

 

 Police Sergeant Michelle Zakoscielny will provide an update on Policing 
activities within the Ward.  
 

7. COMMUNITY UPDATE  
 

 

 Representatives from community organisations will be invited to give updates 
on their activities.  
 



 

 
8. WARD ACTION PLAN  
 

 

 An update on the Ward Action Plan will be given following the comments and 
suggestions made during the consultation process.  
 

9. WARD COMMUNITY BUDGET  
 

 

 Councillors are reminded that they will need to declare any interest they 
may have in budget applications, and/or indicate that Section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 
 
The Member Support Officer will present the latest position, together with the 
following applications for funding which are submitted for consideration: 
 
Application 1 
 
Applicant: Healthy Living Centre  
 
Amount: £1000 
 
Proposal: To replenish the food parcels as demand is increasing due to the 

current economic climate. 
 
 
Application 2 
 
Applicant: Healthy Living Centre  
 
Amount: £1000 
 
Proposal: Head lice combs to be provided to families within the ward to 

reduce infestation of head lice in schools. 
 
 
Application 3 
 
Applicant: STAR (Leicester City Council) 
 
Amount: £250 
 
Proposal: To join the Fairshare Partnership to help people on low incomes 

with food and essentials 
 
Application 4 
 
Applicant: Mowmacre Events Planning Partnership 
 
Amount: £500 
 



 

Proposal: An organised bonfire and firework event to reduce the amount of 
unlawful events in the Ward. 

 
 
Application 5 
 
Applicant: Unity Boxing 
 
Amount: £2500 
 
Proposal: To maintain the Club’s ABA status, increase ABA membership 

and to renew equipment 
 
 
Application 6 
 
Applicant: Bewcastle Sure Start Children’s Centre/Action For Children 
 
Amount: £9,937.35 
 
Proposal: Development of a covered outdoor play and development space 

to expand the delivery of services and to enrich learning and 
understanding. 

 
 
Application 7 
 
Applicant: Stocking Farm Pre-School 
 
Amount: £500 
 
Proposal: Conversion of wasteland to provide a play area for the pre-school 

and a quiet area for the community. 
 
 
Application 8 
 
Applicant: Leicester City Ladies Juniors Football Club 
 
Amount: £1,750 
 
Proposal: Support for an organised tournament to promote the club and to 

continue the progression of youth football, together with the 
training of 6 further coaches through the FA led courses. 

 
 
Application 9 
 
Applicant: Belgrave Playgroup 
 



 

Amount: £2,500 
 
Proposal: To construct a shelter/physical cover to allow children to continue 

to safely use the new outdoor play area.  
  
 

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note the details of the next meeting as; 
 
Tuesday 19 February 2012 at St Patrick’s Centre commencing at 6:00 pm. 
 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Help us to make improvements! 
 
Please help us to improve Community Meetings by filling in an 
Evaluation sheet to let us know what you thought of the meeting. Thank 
you. 
 

 
 

For further information contact 
  



 

Jason Tyler, Democratic Services Officer 
Leicester City Council, Town Hall, Town Hall Square, Leicester, LE1 9BG 
Phone  0116 2298816 
Fax       0116 2298819 
Or 
Jerry Connolly, Member Support Officer 
Phone       0116 229 8821 
Fax           0116 2298819 
 
jason.tyler@leicester.gov.uk/jerry.connolly@leicester .gov.uk 
 
www.leicester.gov.uk/communitymeetings 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.



1 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Your Community, Your Voice 
 

Record of Meeting and Actions 
 
6:00 pm, Tuesday, 21 August 2012 
Held at: Stocking Farm Youth and Community Centre, Marwood 
Road 
 
Who was there: 
 

Councillor Harshad Bhavsar 

Councillor Annette Byrne 

Councillor Colin Marriott 
 

 

 

Appendix A



2 

 
 

12. ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 
Councillor Bhavsar was elected as Chair for the meeting. 
 
 
13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 
14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Byrne declared an interest as a member of the Mowmacre Events 
Planning Partnership and as a member of the Welcome Club, being organisations 
which were the subject of grant applications under the Ward Community Budget 
item. 
     
Councillor Marriott declared an interest as a member of the Mowmacre Events 
Planning Partnership, being an organisation which was the subject of a grant 
application under the Ward Community Budget item. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, the interests declared were not 
considered to be Disclosable Pecuniary Interests but were Other Disclosable 
Interests and were not considered significant as to prejudice Members judgement of 
the public interest.   
 
Members were, therefore, not precluded from considering and determining the grant 
applications. 
 
 
15. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED: 

that the Minutes of the previous Abbey Community Meeting held on 22 
May 2012 were agreed as a correct record. 

 
 
16. ABBEY WARD ACTION PLAN - UPDATE  
 
Jerry Connolly, Member Support Officer, referred to the current Ward Action Plan 
and advised the meeting that views and opinions were being sought to update the 
Plan. 
 
He advised that a questionnaire had been issued to community members and 
stakeholder organisations which asked for priority action areas to be identified.  It 
was noted that the questionnaire was also available online. 
 



3 

Jerry informed the meeting that the priority areas outlined in the current plan 
concerned areas of anti-social behaviour problems, a need for increased out of 
school activities for children, and a need to reduce unemployment levels. 
 
It was noted that the revised and updated Ward Action Plan would influence future 
grants from the £18,000 annual Ward Community Budget.  Applications for grant 
funding which included proposed outcomes that were in accordance with the Plan 
would be more likely to receive favourable consideration.  The importance of input to 
the consultation stage of the Plan’s review was therefore highlighted and noted. 
 
The meeting thanked Jerry for his report and community members agreed to 
complete the questionnaire forms to identify their suggested priority action areas. 
 
 
17. POLICE REPORT  
 
Sergeant Michelle Zakoscielny provided an overview of current Police priorities 
within the Ward.   
 
Michelle referred to the recent use of a mobile speed camera which had led to 
around 50 speeding prosecutions.  The streets where the camera had been 
principally utilised were reported as Marwood Road, Halifax Drive, Bedale Road and 
Parker Drive.  In discussing the effectiveness of the camera it was reported that 
many drivers had slowed on noticing the camera.  Although no offence was 
committed it was considered an effective operation as the camera had acted as a 
deterrent against speeding.  In this respect the meeting was reminded of the 
requirement on Police Officers to be fully visible, including using high visibility 
clothing, when undertaking the operation. 
 
The meeting welcomed the use of the camera within the Ward and members of the 
community were asked to identify areas for its continued use.  Cheltenham Road 
and Somerset Drive were discussed and agreed as appropriate areas for future 
operations. 
 
In respect of crime figures generally, Michelle reported that a decline in reported 
crimes had fallen, including a significant fall in the numbers of thefts, burglaries and 
robberies. 
 
Anti-social behaviour continued to present problems and specific areas being 
targeted were reported.  Michelle asked members of the community to report all 
instances of anti-social and nuisance behaviour, to help the Police to deal with the 
problem and to identify trends in behaviour. 
 
In conclusion Michelle reported with regret that Warren Heath was to leave the Local 
Policing Unit that covered the Ward, as he had been selected to join the Force 
Squad from 3 September 2012.  The meeting expressed that their best wishes be 
forwarded to Warren and that he be thanked for his past contribution to the 
community. 
 
The meeting noted the Police update. 



4 

At this point of the meeting the Chair was advised that young people who were 
members of the neighbouring youth club were in attendance and wished to 
address the meeting.  In view of the nature of the issue the Chair agreed to 
consider the following additional item: 
 
 
18. YOUTH CENTRE CLOSURE AND STAFF REDUNDANCY  
 
The Chair welcomed a group of young people to the meeting who had arrived to ask 
questions about the closure of the neighbouring youth club and the resultant 
redundancy of the youth worker, Haj Kaur. 
 
Three young people were invited to address the meeting.  They referred to the 
importance of the club in the community and spoke of their personal experiences 
where the club had helped them to be active and not to be involved in anti-social 
behaviour.  They commented on the number of young people that had also been 
helped by the club and in particular by Haj as the youth worker. 
 
The young people had organised a petition to reinstate Haj to her job and to continue 
with the youth club.  They felt strongly that the Council had made a mistake to close 
the club and stated that anti-social and nuisance behaviour would probably result. 
 
They asked Councillors to consider the petition and to support them their aim to 
reopen the club and reinstate Haj to her job. 
 
The three young people who made the address were congratulated on their initiative 
to attend the meeting and raise the issue. 
 
It was agreed that the young people should be supported and that the issue be 
investigated fully by Ward Councillors and reported to the next Ward Community 
Meeting.    
 
 
19. WARD COMMUNITY BUDGET  
 
Jerry Connolly, Member Support Officer, provided an update on the Ward 
Community budget.   
 
 
The following applications were submitted for consideration: 
 
A) Events Planning Partnership 
 
Amount: £500 
 
Objectives: A contribution towards a free community bonfire event for residents of 

Abbey and Beaumont Leys Wards to be held on 2 November 2012. 
 

RESOLVED: 
  that the application be supported to the value of £500. 



5 

B) Lucy Bailey (Booty-Camp Workouts) 
 
Amount: £360 
 
Objectives: A proposal for a dance workout class to be held at The Rushey 

Mead Centre, aimed at young to middle aged men and women 
working or living near to Frog Island. It was anticipated that the funding 
would lead to ongoing classes following an initial 6 
month period and would help people who wanted to keep fit and 
healthy. 

 
RESOLVED: 
  that the application be not supported. 
 
C) St Patricks Afternoon Club 
 
Amount: £100 

(Mrs Shorten was in attendance and advised the meeting that she 
wished to reduce the amount of funding requested from £100 to £40) 

 
Objectives: To provide a taxi service to and from meetings for older persons. 
 
RESOLVED: 
  that the application be supported to the value of £40. 
 
 
The following applications had been approved for funding under the Fast-
Track procedure and were reported for information: 
 
D) Welcome Club 
 
Amount: £500 
 
Objectives: To take senior citizens on a day trips. 
 
RESOLVED: 

that the funding approved under the Fast-Track procedure to the value 
of £500 be noted. 

 
E) Tiptree Neighbourhood Watch 
 
Amount: £350 
 
Objectives: Start-up costs for Tiptree Neighbourhood Watch 
 
RESOLVED: 

that the funding approved under the Fast-Track procedure to the value 
of £350 be noted. 

 
 



6 

F) Friends of Mowmacre 
 
Amount: £250 
 
Objectives: Container for storage of equipment on Wheatland gardens 
 
RESOLVED: 

that the funding approved under the Fast-Track procedure to the value 
of £250 be noted. 

 
 
20. COMMUNITY REPORTS  
 
A) UNITY BOXING CLUB 
 
Ajmal Butt was invited to address the meeting. 
 
He referred to the funding assistance previously approved and received from the 
Ward Community Budget and advised the meeting of how those finances had been 
utilised to progress the aims and objectives of the Club. 
 
Ajmal reported that the club enjoyed a large membership of around 200 members 
and that Amateur Boxing Association (ABA) affiliation had been recently been 
awarded which had raised the objectives and profile of the Club.  Ajmal also 
commented on how the funds received from the Ward Community Budget had 
helped in the process of gaining ABA affiliation.  He reported that a Club Constitution 
had been adopted and a Committee had been established with appointed Officers, 
including a Club Treasurer. 
 
In view of the support received by the Club from members of the community, Ajmal 
referred to the recent second birthday celebration event held at the Club premises 
which had been visited by Ward Councillors, the Police and other community groups 
and representatives.  The meeting was informed of the Club’s community links and 
the work undertaken with Connexions and employers’ organisations, particular in 
assisting young people who were categorised as NEETs (Not in Education, 
Employment or Training). 
 
As a competitive Boxing Club, Ajmal reported that 19 boxers had been registered to 
fight competitively.  Of the 45 bouts which the Club had competed, 39 had been won.  
Two young boxers were introduced to the meeting and Ajmal reported on their 
successes, it was noted that that one of them had recently defeated a former ABA 
finalist.  The importance of the Club in the lives of many young people was 
emphasised and the help and support given to young people was highlighted.   
 
It was reported that as well as the name of the Club ‘Unity’ was the principle and the 
theme of the Club.  Ajmal reported that no special sessions were held for any 
particular groups and confirmed that Women and girl boxers were members 
alongside a wide representation of races and backgrounds.  In this regard Ajmal 
commented on a recent article published in the Leicester Mercury newspaper, which 



7 

highlighted the boxing career of a seventeen year old girl who was a club member 
and had enjoyed success at national level. 
 
A qualified boxing referee also addressed the meeting in support of the Club.  He 
reported on the excellent work being carried out and asked the meeting to note the 
significant work undertaken by volunteers to maintain the Club’s operation.  It was 
noted that there were many outstanding issues to be resolved which would assist the 
Club; including the need to formally register an address for the Club for it to gain a 
postcode, and the need for a regular refuse collection service to be in operation.  In 
conclusion of his address the referee commented on the importance of the Club in 
the community, he asked the meeting to support the Club in its aims in whatever 
ways possible and reminded the meeting of the theme of ‘Unity’. 
 
In conclusion Ajmal displayed artwork produced by some of the younger members of 
the Club which highlighted the importance of the Club to them personally. 
 
Ajmal was thanked for addressing the meeting.  He was congratulated on his work 
and for describing how funds received had been utilised in progressing the aims and 
objectives of the Club.  It was agreed to support the Unity Boxing Club in any 
possible way in the future. 

 
 
B) COMMUNITY FIRST 
 
Carlym Quantrill was invited to address the meeting. 
 
She referred to the work being carried out by the Community First Panel in respect of 
funding opportunities for voluntary organisations.  It was noted that a system of 
match-funding had been identified to maximise the funds available to organisations.  
The need for the Ward Community Meeting to work closely with the Community First 
Panel was expressed, as greater opportunities to increase funds could be realised 
through joint working. 
 
The complications of the system were described to the meeting by Carlym, and she 
referred particularly to the confusing statements made in the advice received.  It was 
noted that contradictory information had been received concerning the opportunities 
for public and private sector organisations to be involved in any match-funding 
applications. 
 
Carlym was congratulated on her work undertaken to progress opportunities through 
the Panel and in respect of item 18 above concerning the closure of the Community 
Centre and its staffing; she agreed to refer the situation to the Panel for 
consideration.  
 
Carlym was thanked for addressing the meeting and providing the update on the 
Panel’s work. 
 
 
 
 



8 

C) LEICESTER CITY LADIES FOOTBALL CLUB 
 
Louie Carr, Chairman of Leicester City Ladies Football Club, was invited to address 
the meeting. 
 
He referred to the funding assistance previously approved and received from the 
Ward Community Budget and advised the meeting of how those finances had been 
utilised to progress the aims and objectives of the Club. 
 
John reported that 10 teams were currently established over various age groups and 
the numbers of active club members was around 160 players.  The numbers of 
qualified coaches had been also been increased and it was reported that funding 
received from the Ward Community Budget had assisted in the training of those 
individuals, allowing them to gain their required qualifications. 
 
In respect of funding generally, John Kavanagh, Secretary of the Club, submitted a 
list of annual expenses which detailed various areas of mandatory expenditure.  
These expenses included hire costs of match pitches, training facilities, FA 
administration and registration costs, costs of kit and equipment, and referees 
expenses, along with many other necessary expenses.  The meeting noted the 
significant expenditure required to effectively run the Club and John was thanked for 
supplying the detailed breakdown. 
 
In conclusion, Louie referred to the League and County Cup successes of the Club 
and it was noted that teams of all age groups had won honours. 
 
Louie and John were thanked for addressing the meeting and it was agreed to 
support the Leicester City Ladies Football Club in any possible way in the future. 
 
 
21. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The dates of future Ward Community Meetings were noted as follows: 
 
20 November 2012 
19 February 2013 
 
Both meetings to commence at 6:00 pm. 
 
 
22. CLOSE OF MEETING  
 
The meeting closed at 7:07 pm. 
 
 



 

 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

